ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
April 15, 2015

8:05 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 89

"An Act relating to a parent's right to direct the education of
a child; and relating to questionnaires admnistered in
school s. "

- MOVED CSSB 89( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSCR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO 1

“"An Act prohibiting snoking in certain places; relating to
education on the snoking prohibition; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSSSSB 1(STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 142
"An Act establishing Elders' Day."

- MOVED HB 142 QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 74

"An Act relating to permanent fund dividends; relating to a
nmedi cal assistance reform program establishing a personal

heal th savi ngs account program for nmedi cal assi st ance
recipients; relating to the duties of the Departnent of Health
and Soci al Ser vi ces; est abl i shi ng nmedi cal assi st ance

denonstration projects; and relating to a study by the
Departnent of Health and Social Services."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2015



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 89

SHORT TI TLE: PARENT RI GHTS: EDUCATI ON, SCHOOL ABSENCE

SPONSOR( s) :

03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 31/ 15
03/ 31/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 07/ 15
04/ 09/ 15
04/ 09/ 15
04/ 09/ 15
04/ 09/ 15
04/ 09/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 10/ 15
04/ 14/ 15
04/ 14/ 15
04/ 14/ 15
04/ 15/ 15

BILL: SB 1

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
EDC, STA

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Schedul ed but Not Heard

EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( EDC)

EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( EDC)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
<Pendi ng Referral >

EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CSSB 89(EDC) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( EDC)

EDC RPT CS 3DP 1DNP NEW Tl TLE
DP: DUNLEAVY, d ESSEL, HUGGE NS
DNP: GARDNER

STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG

SPONSOR( S)

01/ 21/ 15
01/ 21/ 15
01/ 21/ 15
01/ 30/ 15
01/ 30/ 15
02/ 11/ 15
02/ 11/ 15
02/ 11/ 15
03/ 11/ 15
03/ 11/ 15
03/ 11/ 15
03/ 13/ 15
03/ 13/ 15

SENATE STA COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) M CCl CHE

PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HSS, STA, FIN

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
HSS, STA, FIN

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Heard & Held

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSSSB 1(HSS) Qut of Conmmittee
M NUTE( HSS)

HSS RPT CS 2DP 3NR SAME TI TLE

DP. G ESSEL, ELLIS

- 2- April 15, 2015



03/ 13/ 15 (S) NR: STEDMAN, KELLY, STOLTZE

04/ 02/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 09/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 09/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 09/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 15/ 15 (S) STA AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HB 142

SHORT TI TLE: ESTABLI SH ELDERS DAY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FOSTER

03/ 09/ 15
03/ 09/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 24/ 15
03/ 25/ 15
03/ 25/ 15

03/ 27/ 15
03/ 27/ 15
03/ 30/ 15
03/ 30/ 15
04/ 15/ 15

BILL: SB 74

I3IT232I3

LYLLIZ

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Moved HB 142 Qut of Committee

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT 7DP

DP; TALERI CO STUTES, KELLER,
GRUENBERG,  VAZQUEZ, KREI SS- TOWKI NS,
LYNN

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON: HB 142

READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
STA

STA AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAl D REFORM PFD/ HSAS/ ER USE/ STUDI ES

SPONSOR( s) :

03/ 13/ 15
03/ 13/ 15
03/ 13/ 15
03/ 13/ 15
03/ 23/ 15
03/ 23/ 15
03/ 23/ 15
04/ 01/ 15
04/ 01/ 15
04/ 01/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 03/ 15
04/ 03/ 15
04/ 08/ 15

SENATE STA COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) KELLY

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HSS, STA, FIN

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HSS)

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HSS)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
<Pendi ng Referral >

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
-- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

- 3- April 15, 2015



04/ 08/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 08/ 15 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

04/ 10/ 15 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 10/ 15 (S) Moved CSSB 74(HSS) Qut of Committee
04/ 10/ 15 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

04/ 11/ 15 (S HSS RPT CS 3DP 1NR NEW TI TLE
04/ 11/ 15 (S) DP: G ESSEL, ELLIS, STOLTZE
04/ 11/ 15 (S NR:  STEDVAN

04/ 13/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 13/ 15 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 13/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 14/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 14/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

04/ 15/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Prine sponsor SB 89.

BETHANY MARCUM St af f

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 89.

SUSAN MCCAULEY, Director

Di vision of Teaching & Learning Support

Al aska Departnent of Education & Early Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed concerns with SB 89.

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, St aff

Senator Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the Committee Substitute for SB 1.

SENATOR PETER M CCl CHE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Prinme sponsor of SB 1.

ANDREA WATTS, Staff
Representative Neil Foster

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2015



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HB 142.

DENI SE DANI ELLO, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssion on Agi ng

Al aska Departnent of Health and Soci al Services
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HB 142.

HEATHER SHADDUCK, St af f

Senat or Pete Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed the changes nmade to SB 74.

VALERI E DAVI DSON, Comm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Health and Soci al Services
Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed concerns for SB 74.

JON SHERWOOD, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Medicaid & Health Care Policy

Al aska Departnent of Health and Soci al Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed questions regarding SB 74.

BECKY HULTBERG, Presi dent/ CEO

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Associ ation
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed concerns for SB 74.

JEREMY PRICE, State Director
Anericans for Prosperity-Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 74.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:05: 05 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:05 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Huggins, and Chair
Stoltze

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2015



SB 89- PARENT RI GHTS: EDUCATI ON;  SCHOOL ABSENCE

8:06:11 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 89. [The work
draft CS for SB 89, version 29-LS0735\G was adopted on 4/14/15.]
Noting that public testinony was closed, he asked if any
conmittee nmenbers had anendnents to offer.

8:06: 51 AM

SENATOR COGHILL noved to report the commttee substitute (CS)
for SB 89 from commttee with individual recomendations and
attached fiscal note.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for discussion purposes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNBKI stated that he was not expecting the bil
to nove during the current commttee neeting. He said the bil
is a pretty significant change to Alaska's law and there are
some pretty significant problens with the bill. He said he was
wondering if the conmttee could hear from the Departnent of
Educat i on.

CHAI R STOLTZE said the committee will hear from the Departnent
of Educati on.

8:07:51 AM
SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SB 89, introduced hinself.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked the foll ow ng:

On page 2, lines 13-17, there is a requirenent for
parental notification of not less than 2 weeks, but
not nore than 6 weeks before any activity, class, or
program that i ncl udes cont ent i nvol vi ng human
reproduction or sexual matters.

He asked if a penalty is involved if a teacher or school does
not follow the strict notification tineline.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied that currently there are no penalties
in the bill. He specified that followwing the tineline is
"expected" to be followed once the bill is passed into | aw.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI inquired if a teacher is prohibited from

answering a student's question on date rape wthout first
receiving a permssion slip.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2015



SENATOR DUNLEAVY specified that the bill is an attenpt at being
reasonabl e, neaning there wll always be questions that cone up
in the classroom with the teacher. He replied no, there would
not be a situation where a child asks a question and the teacher
says, "Hold that thought, we'll get back to you in two weeks."

CHAIR STOLTZE welcomed him to depart from Senator Dunleavy to
Superintendent Dunleavy and noted he is probably aware of
exi sting reporting requirenents.

8:10: 00 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said |anguage on page 2, lines 18-20,
states that parents can renove children for any reason for
religious holidays as defined by the parent. He asked if the
parent needs to notify the school district as to what religious
hol i day they woul d be foll ow ng.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that parents would notify the school
so that absence is understood and al | owed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a pagan holiday would be all owed
as a religious holiday.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that the religious holiday is the
parent's choi ce.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed page 2, lines 21-22 as foll ows:

The school district nust provide the parent with an
opportunity to review the content of an activity,
cl ass, performance standard, or program

He asked if the proviso gives parents the opportunity to review
tests before being adm ni stered.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered no. He detailed that there will be no
avenue to read an assessnent and breach security.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI renmarked that the way he reads the |anguage
is that parents would have the opportunity to review tests. He
asked if clarifying |anguage should be considered that excludes
tests.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that there is no wording regarding
testing.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked where "performance standard" is noted
if that included tests.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered no. He specified that "perfornmance
standard" would include publicly listed standards for each of
t he courses.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked how I ong the parent has to review.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied that the period of time for a parent to
review has not been stipulated in the bill. He said the schoo
board coul d decide on the | ocal |evel

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if guidance should be provided on the
length of tinme a parent has to review

SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied that the bill allows the schoo
district to decide.

8:12:59 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed page 3, Section 3, the Al aska
Association of School Boards (AASB) testified against the
provision. He asked if Senator Dunleavy considered AASB' s
concer ns.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered yes. He specified that the belief is
t he concerns of parents outwei gh AASB s concerns.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he contacted AASB the previous day and
asked for information on what sort of survey questionnaires are
being asked. He disclosed that AASB agreed to provide the
information and asked that the conmttee not nove the bill out
prior to receiving the information.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that nmil has been received on the issue.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY renarked that he was the president of the Mat-
Su school board and was famliar with AASB's purpose in terns of
what it advocates for.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what the rational e was behi nd Section
3, page 3.

8:14: 54 AM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY responded that after discussions wth many
parents that any type of questionnaire should get perm ssion
from parents before their children are surveyed. He sunmarized

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2015



that parents should be inforned so that they can nake infornmed
deci si ons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed page 4, Section 6, and noted that
the section was new where school districts may require physica
exam nations of teachers as a condition of enploynent. He asked
i f Senator Dunleavy could provide background information on the
provi so.

8:16: 02 AM

BETHANY  MARCUM Staff, Senat or Dunl eavy, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, answered that there is no state
requi renent for school districts to conduct physical exans for
teachers. She detailed that should a school district decide to
require a physical exam the section allows the school district
to require the exam nation. She added that the school district
woul d not be required to pay for the physical exans.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked to clarify that the purpose of the
section is not to allow school districts to discrimnate agai nst
t hose who nay have physical disabilities.

M5. MARCUM answered that school districts requested to have
their burden reduced regarding state requirenents |ike physica
exans.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI addressed Section 7 and said the section
states the foll ow ng:

A school district may not permt an abortion services
provider or an enployee or volunteer of an abortion
services provider to offer, sponsor, furnish course
materials, or provide instruction relating to hunman
sexuality or sexually transmtted di seases.

He asked if the school district is required to perform a
background check to ensure that people who are volunteering in
the classroom or offering instruction are not volunteers for
abortion services providers.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answer ed no.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is a penalty if a volunteer

of an abortion services provider is allowed to teach one of the
cl asses.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 15, 2015



SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that there is no penalty to the school
district if unknowingly there was an individual in an official
capacity that taught the class. He detailed that there are no
background checks to determne if sonebody was related to an
abortion service provider.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the proviso would apply to those
who have financially contributed to abortion services providers.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that the intent of the bill is not to
do what Senator W el echowski descri bed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if a parental classroom volunteer who
happens to be a volunteer at an abortion services provider would
be banned fromthe classroom

8:18: 24 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that the intent of the bill would not
ban the individual that Senator W el echowski descri bed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a school nurse who happened to be
a volunteer for an abortion services provider would be able to
provide instruction relating to human sexuality.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that the school nurse's capacity would
be that of an enployee and not as an individual acting as a
representative or activity presenter on behalf of an abortion
service provider. He specified that the bill would not preclude
t he individual in being enployed by the school district.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that the bill does not have a penalty
or require a background check. He asked to verify that a schoo
district that repeatedly allows a volunteer from an abortion
services provider to offer a class would not face a penalty or
puni shrent .

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered as fol |l ows:

| think in a court proceeding they would say that is a
| eading question. If there is an individual that is
hired in an official capacity, has been vetted by the
school district, whether they would be a nurse or
classroom and their primary purpose or function is to
teach the content and adopt the curriculum of the
school district or to performthe duties as adopted by
the school district, this Dbill would offer no
penal ties for that individual.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 15, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE stated that his hope is the questions will be not
to affirma statenent but to really ask a question

8:20: 32 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that sonme hospitals offer abortion
services in energencies, primarily in the case of the life of
the nother. He asked if the bill's definition of abortion
services provider includes the hospitals that he descri bed.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that the hypothetical hospitals that
Senat or W el echowski alluded to could possibly be covered by the
bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the Alaska Regional Hospital or
the Veterans Affairs (VA) Hospital perforns energency abortions,
would volunteers from Alaska Regional or VA hospitals be
permtted to provide instruction.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked to verify that the instruction pertains to
sexual ity.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that a person would not be allowed if
the individual has a direct association wth an abortion
provider and their purpose is to educate children on hunman
reproduction and human sexuality.

8.22:17 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that he has heard concerns that
performance standard reviews could be affected if nore than 5
percent of parents opt out of testing.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY presuned that Senator W el echowski was alluding
to federal funding where sanctions are possible if assessnments
are less than 95 percent.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI asked what the potential sanctions are.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that there could be a |oss of federa
funding through Title 1 of +the E enmentary and Secondary
Educati on Act (ESEA).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a loss of funding would occur on a
school, district, or statewide level if 5 percent of parents
from a particular school decided to opt-out their children from
testing.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2015



SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied that Senator Welechowski's question
cannot be answered because to his know edge, the | oss of funding
t hrough sanctions has not been tested.

8:24:21 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how nmuch federal funding does the
state receive for education

SENATOR DUNLEAVY answered that based upon the types of prograns,
federal funding ranges from $60 mllion to $220 mllion. He
specified that federal funding is in the $60 mllion range for
the state's instructional or title grants.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the state could be | osing funding.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY replied that since the advent of the No Child
Left Behind Act of 2001, a state could |ose everything, but the
sanction has not been tested. He noted that the recent iteration
of ESEA by the U S. Departnent of Education was a unilateral
change that was done w thout Congress and its constitutionality
has been questi oned.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked that a representative from the Departnent of
Education & Early Devel opnment address the conmittee.

8:26:19 AM

SUSAN MCCAULEY, Director, Dvision of Teaching & Learning
Support, Al aska Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnent,
Juneau, Alaska, revealed that there is a potential |oss of
funding for all title progranms where a state law permts
students to opt out of federally and state nmandated assessnents.
She specified that the U S. Departnent of Education is concerned
that participation under the mandated 95 percent threshold may
mask student performance. He disclosed that total funding for
Al aska's title prograns is $96.8 mllion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if M. MCauley had other concerns
with any other parts of the legislation or did she support the
| egi sl ati on.

CHAIR STOLTZE inquired if M. MCauley's statenent addressed a
concern or Some issues.

8:28: 34 AM

M5. MCCAULEY replied that the departnent's primry concern is
with the potential federal funding inplications from state
legislation that permts opting out. She asserted that her

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2015



statenent does not question a parent's right to advocate what
they feel is best.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are other inplications from
the bill that the commttee should be nmade aware of.

M5. MCCAULEY remarked that the state's accountability system for
student learning is based largely on the result of the state
assessnents. She detailed that the state assessnents drive
i mprovenent plans for schools and districts. She asserted that a
dom no-effect could occur if participation falls wunder 95
percent where the state does not receive a good indication of
how school s and districts are doing.

8:30: 23 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked if asserting parental rights is the piece of
the puzzle that coll apses everything.

M5. MCCAULEY answered that she would not characterize the opt-
out inplications the way Chair Stoltze did. She explained that
student learning growth fromyear to year and current mechani sns
of school accountability are largely based on student
performance on state nmandated assessnents.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the conversations he has had wth
educators is that testing is one of the nbst wasted activities
in their classroons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the testing is nandated by state
or federal |aw.

M5. MCCAULEY answered that that assessnments are nmandated by
bot h.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked to verify that state law could be
changed to say "no testing.”

M5. MCCAULEY answered yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI remarked that the commttee could consider
the "no testing"” option. He asked to verify that the state could
decide not to test and say that it does not want the federa
governnent's $96.8 m|lion.

8:32: 23 AM

V. MCCAULEY answered that current federal law requires
assessnents to be admnistered to all students. She concurred

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 15, 2015



with Senator Dunleavy that potential consequences are a bit
unt est ed.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that the state will have to | ook at all
of its relationships with the federal government. He asked if
the departnent is looking at the cost-benefit from federal
enti cenent.

M5. MCCAULEY replied that a daily tension exists in the I|ine
between funds that hopefully do good things for students,
particularly students with challenges, and the state's system of
education done in a manner that the state wants to do.

8. 34:38 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Ms. McCauley is concerned with the
requirenment on page 2 to provide parent notification not |ess
than two weeks, but not nore than six weeks prior to discussions
on human reproduction or sexual mtters. He remarked that
showing the novie "CGone with the Wnd" where people are kissing
coul d be defined as human reproduction or a sexual matter.

M5. MCCAULEY replied that school districts are probably better
equi pped to respond to how parent notification tinelines have
i mpact on their processes. She noted that many districts have
chosen to have parent notification processes in place because
notification is considered to be a good practice for educational
topics that parents may wsh to not have their children
participate in. She said the districts that do not have
notification processes in place wll consi der the new
requi rement burdensone, for others the requirement won't be
different fromcurrent practices.

8:36:18 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the current law allows parents to
wi thdraw their children fromclasses, prograns, or activities.

M5. MCCAULEY replied that currently there is no state |aw that
requires or prohibits parents from withdrawing their children.
She noted that sonme districts do allow parents to wthdraw their
chi | dren.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that to his understanding, school
districts currently allow parents to withdraw their kids for
issues that they are concerned with. He asked if a problem
exi sts that the Legislature needs to fix.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 15, 2015



M5. MCCAULEY stated that she is not inforned in a manner that
can answer Senator Wel echowski's question. She reiterated that
there are districts that have processes that would conply with
the | anguage in the bill.

SENATOR HUGA NS said he is proud to disclose that he had three
children that graduated from Al aska school systens. He opined
that the nost inportant conponent for success of a child is
parental involvenent. He asked where M. MCauley would rank
parental involvenent on her scale as a professional.

M5. MCCAULEY answered that she agreed with Senator Huggins that
parent involvenment has an enornous inpact on student |earning
achi evenent, and success.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked where M. MCauley would rank parent
i nvol venent on her scal e.

M5. MCCAULEY answered that parental involvenent would be right
at the top

SENATOR HUGGE NS commended the bill sponsor for introducing
legislation that will reinforce the bonding between the system
teacher, parent, and student.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that he wll renove his objection. He

asked if any commttee nenber would like to reassert an
obj ecti on.
8:40:41 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objections, CSSB 89(STA)
noved out of the Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

8:40: 45 AM
At ease.

SB 1- REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG

8:43: 05 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SB 1. He decl ared
that public testinony for SB 1 is closed.

8:43:50 AM
SENATOR COGHILL noved to adopt the CS for Sponsor Substitute
(SS) for SB 1, version 29-LS0003\S as the working docunent.

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for discussion purposes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 15, 2015



8:44:13 AM

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, Staff, Senator Bill Stoltze, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, provided an overview of the CS for
SB 1 as foll ows:

Section 1, page 4, |line 7, the word "shall" was
changed to "may" adopt regul ations.

Section 1, page 4, lines 18 and 25, there is a change
for the notice of prohibition, all "Snoking Prohibited
by Law' signs are reducing the maxi num penalty from
$100 to $50.

AS 18.35.316, powers and duties of the conmm ssioner
fromthe previous CS has been del et ed.

Section 2, page 5, line 27, AS 18.35.336, violations
and civil penalties from the previous CS has been
deleted and anended to reflect existing statute. AS
18.35.340(a), civil <conplaints and penalties which
requires the conm ssioner to develop and maintain a
procedure for processing reports of violations and
conform ng changes have also been added to this
secti on.

Section 3, page 6, line 1, is reinstating existing
statute and addi ng conf orm ng changes.

Sections 4-7, pages 6-7, they are all reinstating
exi sting statutes and addi ng conform ng | anguage.

Sections 8-11, page 7, are reinstating existing
statutes and adding conform ng changes. For clarity,
the previous CS, the HSS version, had all of the
statutes elimnated, so we are putting them back in
the State Affairs CS.

8.46: 31 AM
SENATOR PETER M CCICHE, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, said the bill exists and has survived as sonething

designed to protect Alaskans from the effects of secondhand
snoke while they are at the workplace. He asserted that the bil
reinforces the fact that the law is largely self-enforcing and
not designed to be heavy-handed or punitive.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 15, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what was specifically changed in the
provi si ons.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI explained the changes from the Health & Soci al
Services (HSS) version as foll ows:

* Renoved the new penalties and fines.

e Changed from the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) to the Departnment of Environnental Conservation
(DEC) where it exists currently.

* Renpbved the powers and duties of the comm ssioner's section
whi ch does not exist in current statute, which included the
power to adopt regulations which DEC does not currently

have.

 Reinstated all of the existing penalties, fines, and
enforcement abilities of the Departnment of Public Safety
and t he DEC.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for an explanation of the rationale
behi nd putting enforcenment back wi th DEC.

CHAI R STOLTZE answered that noving enforcenment back with DEC is
consistent with the intent of the sponsor. He said there was a
| ot of enforcenment uncertainty with HSS and pointed out that the
bill is largely a clean air issue that falls wunder DEC s
pur vi ew. He noted that current enf or cenment in snoking
prohi bition areas has nostly been through self-regulation wth
very few citations issued. He summarized that the change to the
bill acconplishes the sponsor's goal of creating the statew de
ban without bringing in a | ot nore governnent.

8:50: 03 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE renoved his objection to adopting the CS. He
di sclosed that Senator MQ@ire had expressed an interest in
addressing the issue with e-cigarettes. He revealed that the
nunber one issue of correspondence during the session came from
i ndi viduals who wi shed to use e-cigarettes as their |ess un-safe
option to snoke as a cessation tool. He sumarized that the
di scussion continues on e-cigarettes. He asked if Senator
M cci che had any comments on e-cigarettes.

SENATOR M CCICHE replied no. He said the bill has a ways to go
and all issues are being evaluated. He stated that the bill is
about protecting Al askan workers while trying to find the best
way to do that while inpacting the public and businesses as
little as possible. He asserted that he is still listening to
t he public.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 15, 2015



8:51:49 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there were any anendnents. He requested
that M. Brefczynski address the bill's fiscal notes.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI specified the fiscal notes as foll ows:

* Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)-
Al aska Marine H ghway System $2,400 for FY16, $1,000
t hereafter.

« DOT&PF-International Airports: zero fiscal note.

o DOT&PF- St at e Equi pment Fl eet: $1, 500.

e« DOT&PF- Admi ni stration Support: $10,600 for FY16, $1,100
t hereafter.

* Depart nent of Conmer ce, Communi ty, and Econom ¢
Devel opnent: zero fiscal note.

e Alaska Court System zero fiscal note.

* DHSS-Division of Public Health: zero fiscal note.

e DEC-Division of Environmental Health: zero fiscal note.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that he questioned sonme of the fiscal notes
and said coomentary will be left for the next committee.

SENATOR M CCI CHE detailed that the fiscal notes are largely for
signage and the goal is to find a donor so that there is no cost
to the state.

8:53: 55 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL noved to report SB 1, version S, wth individual
reconmendati ons and the attached fiscal notes.

8:54:12 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE announced that hearing no objections, CSSSSB
1( STA) nmoves  out of the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.]

8:54:14 AM
At ease

HB 142- ESTABLI SH ELDERS' DAY

8:56: 09 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of HB 142.

8:57: 20 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 15, 2015



ANDREA WATTS, Staff, Representative Neil Foster, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, provided an overview of HB 142 as
fol |l ows:

House Bill 142 is an act that establishes Elders' Day.
Elders of all cultural and ethnic backgrounds hold a
special place in the hearts of Alaskans. Elders

know edge and experiences provide a link from the past
to the present, a link that connects us to our
ancestors. Elders also serve a vital role as teachers
and nentors, guiding younger generations through the
many facets of |I|ife. Celebrating and honoring our
elders on wnter solstice, a tine of change and
optimsm not only recognizes the value of those who
came before us, but the significance of the |essons
and know edge they selflessly |eave behind for us to
take into the future.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there is a specific date for wnter
sol sti ce.

M5. WATTS expl ai ned that depending on the year, wi nter solstice
various from Decenber 21-22

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if wnter solstice has any religious
connot at i ons.

M5. WATTS answered that there may have been connotations in the
past, but the bill just recognizes the change of tine and
seasons.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for a definition of elders.

M5. WATTS answered that elder denotes respect and dignity. He
specified that elder is a word that really exenplifies a person
who is honored in their community. She said an elder could be a
t eacher, grandparent, coach, or mlitary veteran. She summari zed
that a person honored as an elder really is in the eye of the
behol der.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if there is an age when a person
becones an el der

MB5. WATTS answer ed no.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the statutes mght have to be tightened
to determ ne what "venerable" is.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 15, 2015



M5. WATTS replied that "venerable" is determ ned

i ndi vi dual 's perception of the el der.

8:59: 33 AM

by an

DENI SE DANI ELLO, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion on Aging,
Al aska Departnent of Health and Social Services, Juneau,

read a statenent of support as follows:

Al aska's elders, regardless of their culture

Al aska,

ethnic

heritage, or where they live, are valuable nenbers of

our society; their wealth of know edge,

vast experiences should be honored and
enrich everyone's life. O der people have |ived

wi sdom and
shared to
| ong,

t hey have successes as well as mistakes and they have

| earned from these life experiences; for

this

Al aska's el ders, tradition bearers, pi oneer,

nmentors who link the past with the present

future generations by offering their

reason,

and
can help
wi sdom and

guidance to keep life nmoving forward in a positive
direction. Just because this is a concisely stated
piece of |legislation, please don't wunderval ue

significance. W feel that Al aska' s ol der
truly a renewabl e resource and each one of
el ders,
us over

responsibility to honor and respect our
is something that our parents have taught

generations. The renowned Tlingit elder,

Sobol eff, has renmnded us to take care

person that we wll becone, so we think this

advi ce and appreciate your hearing of this

peopl e
us has

Dr. Wal
of the

its
are
t he

this
many

ter
ol d

is sage

bill today.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked where her perception was derived that elders

wer e under val ued.

M5. DANIELLO replied that she did not nean
comm ttee nenber underval ues el ders.

9:02: 00 AM

to say

that any

SENATOR COGHILL noved to report HB 142 [29-LS0456\W from

commttee wth individual reconmendati ons and

fiscal note.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that w thout objection,
of Senate State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

9:02:18 AM
At ease.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20-

attached zero

HB 142 noves out

Apri

15, 2015



SB 74- MEDI CAI D REFORM PFD/ HSAS/ ER USE/ STUDI ES

9:03: 57 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 74.

9:04: 07 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noved that the committee adopt the CS for SB 74,

[ version 29-LS0692\F], as the working docunent.
CHAI R STOLTZE obj ected for discussion purposes.

9:04: 28 AM
HEATHER SHADDUCK, Staff, Senator Pete Kelly,

as foll ows:

Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, reviewed the changes nade to SB 74

Section 1, page 1, line 10 through page 2, line 3:

e This sections allows DHSS to enter

i nt

0O a

contract through the conpetitive bidding process
dur abl e
services

under the State Procurenent Code for

nmedi cal equi pnment or specific nmedical
provided in the Medicaid program

M5. SHADDUCK detailed that the new Section 1 has no
the current used durable nedical equipnent bill that i
t hrough both bodies. She continued to address the changes as

foll ows:

Section 2, page 2, |lines 4-16:

* Subsection (a) directs t he depart nment
establish a conputerized incone, asset,
identity eligibility verification system for
purpose of verifying eligibility, elimnating
duplication of public assistance paynents,

public

deterring waste and fraud in the

assi stance prograns.
* Subsection (b) directs the departnent

system The departnent may also contract
third-party vendor to provide information

i mpact on
S running

to
and
t he

and

to enter
into a conpetitively bid contract with a third-
party vendor for the eligibility wverification

with a

to

facilitate reviews of reci pi ent eligibility

conducted by the departnent.

Section 4 (Section 2 in Version S):

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21-

Apri

15, 2015



 Page 4, line 14-22, (8) redesigning the paynent
process, changes specifically list paynment
refornms that should be included:
= (A prem um paynents for centers of
excel | ence;

= (B) penal ties for hospi t al -acqui red
i nfections, readm ssi ons, and out cone
failures;

= (C bundled paynents for specific episodes
of care; and

= (D) global paynents for contracted payer
primary care managers, and case nmnagers for
a recipient or for care related to a
speci fic diagnosis

 Page 6, lines 7-8, adds new (14) to the annual
report related to Medicaid reform DHSS will also
report on the cost, in state and federal funds,
for provi di ng options services under AS
47.07.030(b), the Medicaid program

Section 5, page 6, lines 14-19:

* Requires the Legislature to approve any new
additional groups added to the Medicaid program
on or after March 23, 2010.

Section 12 — (Section 9 in Version S):

« At the request of Legi sl ative Legal, made
t echni cal fixes to the conditional ef f ect
| anguage in Subsections (a) through (e) by
replacing “that section” with the specific

provi sion reference of the bill.

Conform ng changes were nade to renunber sections and
references to specific sections.

9:08:17 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the rationale was behind the
date: March 23, 2010, in Section 5, page 6.

M5. SHADDUCK answered that the intent was to have the
Legi slature approve additional groups  prior to Medicaid
expansion. She noted that the date is an official reference to
when the Affordable Care Act (ACA) went into effect.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- April 15, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI asked if any | egal opinions were sought out
as to whether the section potentially violates federal |aw.

MS. SHADDUCK answer ed no.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that Legislative Legal Services
advised his office that the section potentially violates federal
I aw. He added that his office wll seek out further
docunent ati on.

M5. SHADDUCK related that the U S. Suprenme Court rule will cover
any groups that are optional under ACA. She said she wll talk
to Legislative Legal Services to get sone |egal opinions.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI stated that he would like to hear from the
Departnment of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS).

9:10: 56 AM
VALERI E DAVI DSON, Conmi ssioner, Al aska Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, Juneau, Al aska, stated that she will coment on

sections that the departnment has concerns over as foll ows:

Section 2, the departnment actually has a new
conput eri zed public assi st ance system Al aska' s
Resource for Integrated Eligibility Services (AR ES)

ARI ES pretty nmuch neets all of the requirenents except
the only feature it does not have is an inconme, asset
and identity eligibility verification system W are
anticipating that this section would really require a
plug-in feature for the existing system and not
require us to go out and develop an entirely new
system which could cost mllions, but a plug-in would
be a lot nore affordable and efficient; if that is the
intent of the CS, then we are a lot nore confortable
with that, we anticipate a fiscal note for this and

that will be forthcom ng from our vendor.
Page 4, Section 8, lines 14-21, we are fine wth
these, the only question we had was on |ine 19,

whether we mght consider changing "and" to "or"
because the bundle paynments and global paynents may
conflict; if on the other hand this was to develop a
paynment process that includes these options, then that
is sonething certainly a little bit easier to live
with, but we want to nake sure that by having "and,"
those don't present the opportunity to conflict with
each ot her.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- April 15, 2015



Page 6, Section 5, this section appears to require the
departnment to seek the approval from the Legislature
for any mandatory coverage for Medicaid. The way that
Medicaid is adm nistered, there are nmandatory services
and there are optional services. Mandatory services
are exactly that, they are mandatory. The departnent's
position is it's highly unusual for the departnent to
be required to seek the advanced approval of the
Legislature to conmply wth federal Ilaw. Mandatory
groups do actually get added. W have a couple of
exanples and quite frankly, we don't want to be in a
position of jeopardizing our entire Medicaid program
sinply because we were not required with a mandatory
provi sion of federal |aw.

She stated that Deputy Conm ssioner Sherwood wll provide
exanpl es of where some nandatory groups have been added.

9:15: 32 AM

JON SHERWOOD, Deputy Commissioner, Medicaid & Health Care
Policy, Al aska Departnment of Health and Social Services, Juneau,
Al aska, explained that nmandatory groups do not get added often
and typically are part of larger structural changes to the
Medicaid programis barter healthcare system He detailed that
exanples include special Medi care beneficiaries which are
mandatory groups created to provide assistance to |ow incone
Medicare recipients wth their co-paynents, prem uns, or
deducti ble expenses. He said another exanple of a nandatory
group that was added by the ACA was for children who age-out of
state foster care, a nmandatory coverage group that would be
i npacted by the provision.

9:17:37 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE said the commttee was not dealing with Medicare
expansion, but noted that there was a lot of intertw ned
connectivity. He asked if Section 5 is a deal breaker.

COW SSI ONER DAVI DSON declared that the departnent opposes
Section 5.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the departnent vigorously opposes Section
5.

COVMM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answer ed yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 15, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL opined that Section 5 appears to say if Congress
is going to unilaterally change the state's budget that the
Legi sl ature shoul d have a say.

9:19: 09 AM

MR, SHERWOOD answered that the departnent typically has to
submt a new plan anendnent for a new federal mandate in order
to assure inplenmentation. He added that the Legislature would
beconme aware of the new mandate through the budget process if
i ncreased expenditures are required. He revealed that there is
no direct approval for a federal nandate and state statutes
instruct conpliance with the federal law, both for eligibility
cat egories and services.

SENATOR COGHI LL comented that he is willing to take the chance
with the provision because Medicaid has always been called a
state-federal partnership. He remarked that wunilateral action
can quickly overrule the state and create difficulties. He

remarked that he would want to find out prior to a bill being
sent to the Legislature and the nmandate is already set into
notion. He opined that nore Medicaid mandates wll occur as

Medicare starts to wonder nore frequently into the Medicaid
wr ap- around servi ces.

CHAI R STOLTZE remarked that he has the sanme concerns about the
state's appropriations and financial responsibilities where
Alaska is on the hook in its relationship with the federal
gover nnent .

9:21:54 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if illegal aliens have access to Medicare
or Medicaid via presidential executive orders.

MR. SHERWOOD answered that the general rule for Medicaid is a
person nust be a U S. citizen or a |egal permanent resident that
has been present in the U S for at least five years. He noted
t hat one exception applies to emergency services.

9:24:12 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that his office received an e-mail prior to
the commttee neeting from M. Tony Newran, Legislative Specia
Assistant for DHSS. He asked if M. Newran's e-mail should be
i ncluded as the departnent's position.

COVMM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answer ed yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- April 15, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Comm ssioner Davi dson supported SB
74.

COWM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answered that DHSS has no position on the
bill, but opposes Section 5. She added that the departnent
believes that reform and expansi on go hand-in-hand. She said the
departnment would like to see a Medicaid expansion provision in
the bill.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked to verify that the departnent has no
position on the bill.

COWM SSI ONER DAVIDSON reiterated that the departnment has not
taken an overall position on the bill, but the departnent does
oppose Section 5.

SENATOR HUGA NS commented that he see reform as an avenue to
have a conversation about expansion. He remarked that expansion
is not part of the bill and he's a bit disappointed. He thanked
Comm ssi oner Davi dson for stating her position.

9:26:34 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that the Governor has introduced his
own bill to reform and expand Medicaid. He asked that
Comm ssi oner Davi dson describe sone of the reformefforts in the
Governor's bill and how much the state woul d save.

COWM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answered that SB 74 and the Governor's
bill are closely aligned in terns of reform efforts. She noted
that sonme of the provisions in the Governor's bill includes
speci fic | anguage on the foll ow ng:

* Use an 1115 Waiver to negotiate with the Centers for
Medi care & Medicaid Services (CV5) that will allow the
state to take advantage of 100 percent federal match.

 Wrk with the tribal health system to enhance their
ability to provide care for beneficiaries.

e Engage wth an independent third party to rmake
recommendations and report at the beginning of the
next session for a provider-tax.

She detailed that in order to inplenent the provider-tax,
separate legislation would be required. She disclosed that
Alaska is the only state without a provider-tax. She explained
that nost states typically inpose a provider-tax on hospitals
and nursing hones.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 15, 2015



COM SSI ONER DAVI DSON set forth that Medicaid expansion and
reformis healthy for Al askans and detailed as foll ows:

* Increases access to healthcare coverage.

» Saves the state $107 mllion over the first 6 years.

e Saves resources that the state is currently paying for with
100 percent fromthe CGeneral Fund.

e Good for the econony by infusing over $1 billion in new
resources into Al aska.

e Acts as a catalyst for reform

She reiterated that reform and expansion go hand-in-hand. She
voiced that reformis a constant process that happens all of the
time. She asserted that DHSS has already undertaken reform
efforts based on current and prior admnistrations. She renmarked
that since reformefforts have been undertaken, the state should
do expansi on.

9: 30: 26 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that he had asked at the previous conmttee
neeting that Conmm ssioner Davidson provide a projection on
departnental |etterhead, absent expansion, for the anticipated
growh in Medicaid up to 2030.

COWM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answer ed t hat Medi caid's grow h

projections are expected to range from $4.5 billion to over $6
billion by 2032. She disclosed that the projections do not take
into account the reform efforts that the departnent s

undertaki ng. She said DHSS recognizes that the Medicaid program
inits current formis not sustainable and there's no choice but
to reform

9:32: 30 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there is an aversion to providing the
committee with a projection docunent as part of the record. He
said a Medicaid growth projection from DHSS is an inportant part
of the record.

COW SSIONER  DAVIDSON replied that DHSS wll provide the
docunent to the commttee.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that his request wll give Conmm ssioner

Davi dson an opportunity to provide her own nunbers in contrast
to the projections that she has chall enged.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- April 15, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how much unconpensated care there is
in Alaska, who pays for the unconpensated care, and how much
unconpensated care is expected to be covered by the federal
government if Medicaid was expanded.

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the conmttee does not have an
expansion bill. He said the expansion bill was not referred to
the conmttee.

COWM SSI ONER DAVI DSON answered that according to the Al aska
State Hospital and Nursing Hone Association (ASHNHA), Al aska
hospitals provide over $100 mllion in unconpensated care
annual ly. She noted that Arizona saw a 30 percent reduction in
unconpensated care during its first 6 nonths of expansion and
added that ASHNHA has testified that they projected a 30 percent
drop in their unconpensated care. She said with regard to who
pays for unconpensated care, everyone does because a hospital
has to increase what they charge to recoup their | oss.

9:34: 36 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the Governor has said that expansion is
reform He asked if there has been an evolution by the
adm ni stration that just spending nore noney is not reform

COWM SSI ONER DAVIDSON replied that she does not recall the
Governor meking the statenent that expansion is reform She
reiterated that expansion and reform actually goes hand-i n-hand.
She opined that if the Governor's position was that expansion is
reform then he would probably have introduced a bill that was
just on expansion, but he instead chose to do a bill that is
bot h expansi on and reform

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that there may have been an evol ution by
t he Governor.

SENATOR HUGA NS said there are studies that indicate "CbamaCare"
has had little or no effect on unconpensated care or energency
room usage.

9: 36: 46 AM
COWMM SSI ONER DAVI DSON replied that the states in the study may
have benefited from a bill simlar to Governor Wil ker's that

requires identifying soneone that over utilizes the energency
room depart ment .

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that Comm ssioner Davidson nentioned
the total savings on the Governor's reformbill of $107 mllion.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 15, 2015



He said he thought the total savings over 6 years was $330
mllion.

9:38: 27 AM
COWMM SSI ONER DAVI DSON specified that the savings for the state's
general fund would be $107.8 million in the first 6 years.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that an expansion bill is in another
commttee. He asked that questions be general and not too
involved in the expansion bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked why the state should expand now
versus waiting until reforns kick in.

9:40: 05 AM

COWM SSI ONER DAVI DSON asserted that reforns had already kicked
in. She detailed that the reforns began in the prior
adm nistration in addition to the reforns that were undertaken
in Decenber, including benefits fromthe super-utilizer program
She revealed that the ACA's enhanced federal match of 100
percent for Medicaid expansion only lasts through 2016. She
detailed that the state has already missed $146 million or
$400,000 per day from the federal match opportunity. She
specified that federal match over the com ng cal endar years as
fol |l ows:

e 2017: 95 percent
e 2018: 94 percent
e 2019: 93 percent
« 2020 and beyond: 90 percent.

She noted that 93 percent federal match is the same for the
state's aviation or runway inprovenents and 90 percent is the
same match for transportation and road inprovenents. She
summari zed that the state has an opportunity to make Al askans as
healthy and productive as possible using 100 percent federal
funds in the first year.

9:42:28 AM

She addressed recent testinmony from two different providers:
PeaceHeal th Hospital from Ketchikan and Central Peni nsul a
Hospital from Sol dotna. She detailed that PeaceHealth received
an innovation grant from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CM5) and spent $700,000 to be able to lose $1.5
mllion in order to inprove health outcones for their
popul ati on. Central Peninsula said they had interest in pursuing
a Medicaid denonstration project described in the Governor's

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- April 15, 2015



bill that would change the way Medicaid is reinbursed. She
specified that Central Peninsula preferred to use the resources
from Medicaid expansion because they would not realize the
savi ngs and make nuch progress. She said simlar to PeaceHealth,
Central Peninsula intends to spend noney to | ose noney.

9:45:43 AM

BECKY HULTBERG President/CEO, Al aska State Hospital and Nursing
Hone Association (ASHNHA), Juneau, Al aska, provided general
comments on SB 74 as foll ows:

W've had a really good dialog this session about
reformand | think that is healthy and it's also step
one of what needs to be an ongoing dialog. W agree
with the sponsor and the departnent that Medicaid
costs are growi ng at an unsustai nable rate.

In my past job | sat in this building and said
heal thcare costs are growing at an unsustainable rate
and that is still the case; but, | think to understand

why healthcare costs are growing at an unsustainable
rate, we have to | ook at how we pay for healthcare and
what we pay for, |I'm going to take a bit of a step
back and talk about that because it is essential to
reform and how reform can actually nove forward and
make change. Qur healthcare paynent system right now
incentivizes the wong things. W work within what is
called a fee-for-service system which basically neans
providers get a fee for each service that they
provide. Providers are thus financially rewarded based
on the volune of care provided, not necessarily the
val ue of that care, value neaning that the quality and
cost of that care are both considered. So we know t hat
nationally the trend in healthcare is toward paying
for value, toward paying for quality outcones, and
toward incentivizing providers for reduced cost in
getting those outcomes; but this is a really huge
shift in how care is delivered and how paynent is
made, it is going to take tine, it's going to be
di sruptive, and systematic change wll not happen
until those financial incentives change. Portions of
this bill do begin to address that question of paynent
reform Sone payers are al r eady maki ng this
transformation, Medicare is noving toward val ue-based
purchasing, pretty aggressively; so this is comng,
the question for us is how we are going to respond in
this environnent. Providers are working to nake this

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 15, 2015



transition in a pretty chal | engi ng econoni ¢

environment and | just want to take a mnute because
again, | think this is essential to reform
9:48: 12 AM

M5. HULTBERG conti nued her overview as foll ows:

Hospitals are a unique industry sector in nmany ways.
One of the nost significant ways that our industry is
unique is that we are legally required to give our
services away for free, that's because the federal
Emergency Medical Treatnment and Labor Act (EMIALA),
requires hospitals to take care of patients that are
present at the enmergency room whether they can pay or
not; this unconpensated care anobunts to over $100
mllion per year and that's a conservative estimte
for Alaska hospitals, sonme hospitals have testified
that it is between 10 and 20 percent of their charges.

Al aska hospitals' other area of financial pressure is
Al aska hospitals are facing very significant financial
pressures from the Medicare program Al aska Hospitals
will see $600 million in Medicare reductions in a 15
year tinme horizon; that started in 2010, it goes out
to 2024. There are another $300 million of cuts under
consideration, which could bring the total cuts to
Al aska hospitals to alnpst $900 nmillion, that's a |ot
of noney com ng out of the system

The cuts have cone through a couple of ways and | want
to address that and | think part of this refers to
sonmet hing Senat or Huggi ns has spoken about regarding
Medi care crowd-out. Sonme of those cuts did cone as a
result of ACA between $250 million and $300 nillion
of those cuts canme about because of the act. The
assunption was that if unconpensated care goes down,
which it should, if people have coverage through the
exchanges or through Medicaid expansion, the hospitals
could absorb Medicare cuts. In states that have not
expanded Medi caid, those unconpensated care reductions
have been nmuch, nuch Iless. The concern for non-
Medi caid expansion-states is that the hospitals are

going to take those cuts regardless. Now | want to
point out that while some of the cuts originated in
ACA, they are now not really linked to it because

Republ i can budget proposals have kept the cuts, even
as they propose repealing the ACA, so we have to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -31- April 15, 2015



assunme those cuts are here to stay and they are an
econonmic reality that our industry is now learning to
deal wth.

So in this economic environment it is kind of hard to
talk about reform because what do you want out of
reforn? The goal of reform is bending the cost curve
and reducing the <cost of healthcare. So in an
environnent where we are taking noney out of the
system we are saying now we need to take nore out of
the system that's a really challenging conversation
to have with any industry.

9:50: 42 AM
MS. HULTBERG conti nued her overvi ew as foll ows:

But we are here supporting reform for a couple of
reasons. First, we know it's the right thing to do and
it's absolutely what we have to do as an industry to
survive. Secondly, because we have this opportunity
with the carrot of Medicaid expansion to put sone
nmoney back into the systemto help us reformas we are
taking noney out and so | think that's why
understanding that this bill is related to reformthat
from a hospital perspective it's hard to have the
reform conversation wthout having the expansion
conversation. Couple quick reasons, Medicaid reformis
not a point in time event, it's an ongoing process and
again, | want to thank this comrttee and the
Legislature for really considering these issues this
year. W wll be successful in reform and we are
having these conversations every year, so | think it
has been a good dialog, but we shouldn't necessarily
wait for reform because we wll never arrive, the
industry is too dynamic, it is too conplex, and it is
changing too fast to ever say that we have really

arrived at reform Second, innovation and change
require capital. For any business to fundanentally
change its business nodel, and that's what is being
required in healthcare right now, that is not

sonething that can be done w thout an investnent and
it is certainly not sonmething that is easy to do when
you are taking noney out of that system which is what
is happening right now So if we are going to succeed
at reform we are going to have to find a way to
invest to change how care is delivered, and we're
going to have payers who are wlling to have the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -32- April 15, 2015



conversations about how do we pay for value instead of
paying for volune, those two things have to go hand-
i n- hand.

As the comm ssioner nentioned, PeaceHealth-Ketchikan
tal ked about how they have been successful at reform
t hey have been successful at coordinating care; they
received a $3 million innovation grant to fund their
project, the result of that project has been better
quality outcomes and reduced revenue at the hospital.
So you have to ask the question, under our current
system if they are to reform without a grant, they
will be spending noney to |ose noney to inprove care;
there are not many busi nesses that choose that path.

So how do we as a state help to drive reformin that
econom ¢ environnment? The answer is we have to help,
especially our smaller facilities that do not have
financial capacity, identify resources that they can
invest in reform and then we have to have the
conversation about how we pay for value so that we can
sustain that reform that's really where Medicaid

expansi on COIes in because t he reducti on in
unconpensated care inproves margins, which then allows
for the risk capital for innovation. From our
standpoint, this is an issue on many levels, it is

from a hospital perspective an inportant issue about
providing care for the vulnerable in our comunity,
it's an economic issue, and it's a fiscal issue; but,
it's also very nmuch an issue about how we are going to
sustain the business nodel of the hospital that
provides care in the community and that's, | think

for us a really inportant conversation. Qur hospitals
cannot pick up their practices and nove, they are
here, they are integral parts of the conmmunity and
often they are the backbone of a comunity. So the
guestion for us and why we are here saying we want to
reform is that we know we nmnust reform to renain
viable, but the |andscape |ooks really challenging.
According to the National Rural Health Association, 48
Critical Access Hospitals (CAH) have closed their
doors. CAH are hospitals bel ow 25 beds, 48 have cl osed
their doors since 2010, and an estimated 300 nore are
at risk. As we look at this era of disruptive change,
we have to figure out how we navigate it and navigate
it in an environnent of reduced resources; we believe
reform is critical to that conversation but we also

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 15, 2015



bel i eve t hat expansi on is critical to t hat
conversation

So M. Chairman, those are just my general conments
about the bill. 1 am happy to answer any specific
gquestions about the legislation. | think we believe
again, reform and expansion should go hand-in-hand,
but we do appreciate the efforts of the bill's sponsor
to address this difficult question of reform

9:55:23 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the President said ACA was going
to be established to cover people with better healthcare and
spend | ess noney. He asked if M. Hultberg was actually shocked
that the things the President said are a little upside down.

M5. HULTBERG replied that the healthcare industry was going
t hrough changes before ACA and noted that the economc
environment for healthcare was difficult before the ACA. She
di scl osed that businesses were driving their own change. She
added that commercial payers are the best payers for hospitals.
She opined that ACA accelerated change, but it was not the
driving force necessarily for sonme of the changes that were
currently being seen. She disclosed that the Anmerican Hospita
Associ ation supported ACA and was wlling to work with the
adm ni strati on because of the increased coverage covered by the
act. She summarized that the state has to figure out how to
navigate the current business |andscape in order to maintain
hospitals, ©provide quality care, and ensure continuity of
services regardl ess of what an individual thinks m ght happen in
the future or what happened in the past.

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that "reform is a broad and nebul ous term
He said the ternms "cost control," "cost containnent,"” and
"sustainability" narrows the discussion in making a sustainable
program He remarked that the approximate $ 6 billion projection
by 2032 would be a pretty healthy chunk of the state's budget
wi th Permanent Fund earnings used well before federal nandates
are net. He reiterated that the term "reform |eaves a lot of
the other discussions off of the table because everybody is a
ref or mer.

9:58:41 AM

M5. HULTBERG affirned Chair Stoltze's point and related that
Medicaid reformcan be divided into three "buckets" as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 15, 2015



1. Programmatic Reform making reforms in the existing
program

2. Benefit Redesign: |ooking at what other states have done to
things |ike benefit plans and co-paynents.

3. Payment Reform meking sure the state is paying for the
outcones it wants.

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that he is a little concerned about the
sentinment, "Pass the bill and we'll work on it." He said he
wants to meke sure the conmmttee understands how the bill is
going to affect the state and the providers. He opined about
seei ng an awakening of the providers realizing that expansion is
not just a free check.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI conmmented that ASHNHA has a lot of non-
profits who are providing care and not making a profit off of it
because the governnment requires that care be provided for anyone
that walks in the door. He said providers are losing $100
mllion per year in unconpensated care and asked if it is fair
to say that the Legislature has the ability to help ASHNHA
menbers recover a significant portion from unconpensated care by
expandi ng Medi cai d.

M5. HULTBERG answered yes. She asserted that expansion will help
ASHNHA help the state invest in the kind of care redesign and
reform that assists in lowering the cost curve over the |ong
termwhich is a real win for everyone.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that the current healthcare business
nodel is not good. He remarked that the healthcare system
continues to need significant inprovenment and he was glad to see
the conmttee addressing reform He asked if any ASHNHA
organi zations wll go out of business if they continue to
provide $100 mllion-plus in unconpensated care.

10: 01: 42 AM

M5. HULTBERG reveal ed that hospital finances are a significant
spectrum where sone facilities are very profitable and sone are
on the margin. She remarked that she is concerned about ASHNHA' s
Critical Access Hospitals as the economc environnment becones
increasingly difficult.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI commented that he would hate to see
hospitals shutdown and Al askans |ose access to nedical care
because ASHNHA organizations are providing $100 mllion in
unconpensated care. He asserted that the Legislature not taking

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 35- April 15, 2015



the opportunity to fix the problem in the next week would be
extrenely unfortunate for Al askans.

10: 02: 30 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL said a whole range of delivery services for
Medicaid nust be |ooked at, not just hospitals. He asked if
ASHNHA or gani zati ons are using tel enedici ne.

M5. HULTBERG replied that telenedicine is really exploding in
the Lower 48 and has a lot of promse in Al aska. She said
Al aska's tribal system is very sophisticated in its use of
tel emedi cine. She admtted that Al aska is behind the rest of the
country in the adoption of telenedicine due to barriers that she
i's not equi pped to address.

SENATOR COGHI LL stated that prior to adding nore people, a
connection nust be made between hospitals with expertise and
some of the needs in other conmunities. He noted that not just
the hospitals are feeling the weight of change, but people who
have delivered services that have not been paid because of
system changes, like elder care or child care. He asserted that
due to not changing behavior, profit and nonprofit deliverers
who do not get paid my not be capable of adding a new
popul ati on.

10: 05: 32 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE renmarked that there are two bills, one that is the
Governor's bill and the other referred to as the "reform cost
cont ai nnment " bill. He specified that the "reform cost
containment” bill was directed by the legislative process, a

del i berative consideration by three commttees wth public
testinmony and nultiple hearings. He said Governor Wl ker made a
pretty public demand that his bill have a |ess deliberative
process of only two conmttees. He asserted that the Legislature
put nore due diligence on the "reform cost containnment” bill
than on the CGovernor's bill. He remarked that the CGovernor nade
a pretty public "request slash denmand® and the Legislature
yielded to the invasion from another branch of governnent out of
respect and courtesy. He said the "reform cost containnent” bill
process has been nore deliberative on cost containnment and
reform then on the expansion. He noted that several adm ssions
have been made to hurrying it up on expansion, but the commttee
does not deal with expansion and only has one vehicle that has a
very deliberative |egislative process.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 36- April 15, 2015



SENATOR HUGA NS asked to verify that nonprofit hospitals have a
mechanism to distribute sonme of their revenue back into the
comunity.

10: 07: 15 AM

M5. HULTBERG answered that there are specific requirenments to
mai ntain not-for-profit status that a facility provides a
certain anount of comrunity benefit. She detailed that conmunity
benefit can include unconpensated care and other subsidized
services where the facility knows that they are never going to
make break-even, but the services are considered a community
benefit.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked to establish that the dollars for
provi di ng community benefits cone out of the non-profit system

M5. HULTBERG answered that the assunption is that the community
benefit dollars would have been paid in taxes so the benefit is
going back into the community in a different way, recognizing
that taxes also are a benefit to the comunity.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how big the pot was for |arger hospitals.

M5. HULTBERG answered that the pot was in the hundreds of
t housands of dollars.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the |argest taxpayers in two of
the |argest muni cipalities are private hospitals: Al aska
Regi onal of Anchorage and Mat-Su Regional in the Mt-Su Borough.

MS. HULTBERG agreed that the two noted hospitals are very |arge
taxpayers and there is a conmunity benefit associated with being
a |large taxpayer as well.

CHAIR STOLTZE disclosed that M. Price had coments from the
private sector.

10: 09: 42 AM

JEREMY PRICE, State Director, Anericans for Prosperity-Al aska,
Anchor age, Al aska, explained that Anericans for Prosperity is an
organi zation devoted to economc freedom He detailed that
Anericans for Prosperity define economc freedom as policies

that help small businesses and individuals be successful by
keeping the cost of government and taxes |low. He said Anmericans
for Prosperity supports SB 74 and considers the bill as a great

pi ece of legislation that takes a valiant approach to reformng
the cost of Medicaid. He asserted that reformis the first part

SENATE STA COW TTEE -37- April 15, 2015



of the equation that must be figured out first. He noted reports
that Medicaid spending will continue to increase even wthout
expansion. He asserted that should Al aska expand Medicaid, the
federal governnent may reduce their paynment share after the
state is on the hook.

10: 14: 08 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that Conm ssioner Davidson nentioned in a
previous commttee neeting that she wanted to neet and hear from
all of the stakeholders' voices. He opined that M. Price's
testinmony represents the interests in a lot of folks in the
| egislators' districts. He said unfortunately there has not been
a wllingness from sonme stakeholders to voice their opinion. He
stated that there are a lot voices in the Medicaid debate, not
just the recipients, but the folks that are paying the bills.

MR PRICE pointed out that private practice physicians are
comng out in support of reform but against expansion. He
opined that private practice physicians have said that ACA is
killing their businesses and Medicaid patients are treated as a
charitable contribution to their comunities. He said private
practice physicians are out there, but they are afraid of
testifying agai nst t he bill because of intimdation

retaliation, |osing custoners, and taking on the Governor.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that he will recess to a call of the
chair to leave flexibility open to continue the discussion on a
maj or piece of legislation. He asked that Senator Kelly attend
the next committee neeting to address the bill's close out. He
inquired if Ms. Shadduck had any cl osing remarks.

10:17: 20 AM

M5. SHADDUCK declared that she wanted to point out a few
provisions that are absolutely unique to Senator Kelly's bill
She opined that SB 74 has a bigger focus on fraud, extensive
| egislative reporting requirenents, paynent reform and fiscal
notes that reflect costs that are not shown in the Governor's
bill. She pointed out that Conm ssioner Davidson and M.
Hul t berg both said paynent reform is absolutely sonething that
should be done by changing from a fee-for-service to an
incentive based service. She detailed that SB 74 has a fisca
note that reflects incentive based service reform She reveal ed
that the Medicaid managed care case nmanagenent denonstration
program is unique to Senator Kelly's bill. She said extensive
studi es have shown that doing nmanaged care or case managenent in
the Medicaid program saves noney and noted that SB 74 is
projected to show up to 20 percent in savings; however, DHSS has

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 38- April 15, 2015



shown no savings in their fiscal note and are not confortable
with submtting an indeterm nate fiscal note.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that Senator Kelly will have a voice
on the fiscal note conversation in the Senate Fi nance Conmttee.

M5. SHADDUCK disclosed that DHSS was excited that SB 74 adds
some positions for fraud prevention and addresses cost
contai nnent; however, the costs only show up on Senator Kelly's
bill.

CHAI R STOLTZE acknow edged the assistance of Senator Coghill,
Representative Vazquez, and legislative staff nenbers for
providing ideas that made it into the bill. He noted that
Representati ve Vazquez has experience from the Departnent of Law
with fraud investigations and brought relevant issues to the
di scussion. He stated that SB 74 was a col |l aborative effort, but

t he substance of the bill was yielded to the sponsor.
10: 20: 37 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the commttee will stand in recess

to the call of the chair. [The conmttee did not reconvene and
SB 74 was held in conmttee.]

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 39- April 15, 2015



